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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company (the “Company"), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the international
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit
of the financial staternents of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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Adequacy of allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables

Adequacy of the amount of allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables is
the key area of the Company's management judgement. Determination of the evidence of impairment and
determination of the recoverable amount are the processes that involve high level of subjective judgment, use
of assumptions and analysis of different factors, including lessee’s or borrower’s financial position, expected
future cash flows and value of collateral and leased property. Use of different models and assumptions may
materially affect the amount of allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables.

Due to the substantial amounts of finance tease receivables and loans to customers, which in aggregate
amount to 69% and 19% of the Company’s total assets as at 31 December 2016, respectively, and significant
judgments used by the management, estimation of allowance for impairment was the key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included analysis of the methodology on estimation of allowance for impairment of loans
to customers and finance lease receivables and assessment and testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of controls over the processes of impairment identification and estimation. As part of the audit
procedures, we analysed assumptions and tested the accuracy of inputs used by the Company in its
assessment of impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables on a collective basis, such as
loss rates, probability of default and loss given default rates.

We analysed the sequence of the Company’s management judgments used in assessment of the statistical
information on the losses incurred, as well as conformity of the applied impairment model with general
practice and our professional judgment. With regard to assessment of impairment of loans to customers and
finance lease receivables on an individual basis, we performed the analysis of the Company’s management
expectations on future cash flows, including the cash flows that may result from foreclosure of collateral and
repossession of leased property, based on our professional judgment and information available in the market.

We assessed the information on allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables
disclosed in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.
Other information included in the Company’s 2016 Annual report

Other information consists of the information included in the Annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information.

The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available to us and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the management and the Board of Directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal controls as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by rmanagement.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report tc
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Bakhtiyor Eshonkulov.

Ganet &%«mf LLP

@“'f (|5 ) <) WMK/
Bakhtiyor Eshonkulov /s//

/ Gulmira Turmaga#betova
Auditor / audit partner Genera!l Director
Ernst & Young LLP

Auditor qualification certificate State audit license for audit activities on the territory

No. M®-0000099 dated 27 August 2012 of the Republic of Kazakhstan: issued series M®IO-2
No. 0000003 issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
Republic of Kazakhstan on 15 July 2005

050060, Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty
Al-Farabi ave., 77/7, Esentai Tower

18 March 2017
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KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company 2016 financial statements
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2016

(thousands of tenge)

Notes 2016 2015
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 22,989,891 23,874,332
Amounts due from credit institutions 6 662,881 2,549,777
Derivative financial assets 7 829,066 1,734,567
Loans to customers 8 54,841,601 59,739,798
Finance lease receivables 9 197,402,364 179,633,484
Assets held for sale 10 - 508,034
Propetty held for finance lease 11 5,292,406 7,594,407
Current cotporate income tax prepaid 18 894,899 626,732
Propetty and equipment 12 1,010,749 1,078,038
Intangible assets 216,334 227,695
VAT and other taxes receivable 13 1,874,026 1,554,151
Advances paid 14 284,744 5,996,446
Other assets 20 484,261 180,819
Total assets 286,783,222 285,298,280
Liabilities
Amounts due to the Shareholder 15 85,638,633 104,286,082
Amounts due to credit institutions 16 39,556,372 30,424,302
Debt securities issued 17 46,841,139 38,624,394
Deferred corporate incorne tax liabilities 18 2,133,275 2,460,648
Advances received 19 2,502,225 4,760,927
Deferred VAT payable 2,945,520 2,533,534
Other liabilities 20 7,798,233 6,778,834
Total liabilities 187,415,397 189,868,721
Equity
Share capital 22 82,837,204 82,837,204
Additional paid-in capital 22 23,282,853 22,248,866
Reserve funds 22 1,436,184 1,436,184
Reserve for notional distribution 22 (9,372,015) (9,047,665)
Retained earnings / (accumulated deficit) 1,183,599 (2,045,030
Total equity 99,367,825 95,429,559
Total liabilities and equity 286,783,222 285,298,280
Book value per commmon share (in tenge) 22 1,196.94 1,149.26

Signed and authotized for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

Izbastin Kanysh Temirtayevichgs Chaitman of the Management Board
§es A
15 4 R4
So M s ¢
& w =R
£o I8 £z
B
o W gy ¢
83% Sl
; - ‘ﬁ. C:’ 8. D? B/ . /ﬁ .
Shodanova Gulnara Takishevigrs= o // [ Chief accountant
o

18 March 2017

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.



KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company 2016 financial statements
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the year ended 31 December 2016

(thousands of tenge)
Notes 2016 2015
Interest income
Finance lease receivables 17,788,390 14,918,315
Loans to customers 5,763,140 6,032,488
Amounts due from credit institutions 1,761,051 822,340
25,312,581 21,773,143
Interest expenses
Amounts due to the Shareholder (6,356,922) (6,298,616)
Debt securities issued (3,500,199) (2,024,110)
Amounts due to credit institutions (2,512,193) (1,782,960)
(12,369,314) (10,105,686)
Net interest income 12,943,267 11,667,457
Allowance for impairment of loans to customets and finance lease
receivables 8,9 (6,187,708) (4,611,789)
Net interest income after allowance for impairment of loans to
customers and finance lease receivables 6,755,559 7,055,668
Net (losses)/gains from transactions with derivative financial assets 7 (947,531) 1,280,852
Net gains from transactions in foreign currencies 290,810 (10,489,402)
Other income 23 878,302 930,326
Non-interest income 221,581 (8,278,224)
Personnel expenses 24 (2,380,330) (2,355,234)
Other operating expenses 24 (732,470) (811,297)
Net loss from restructuting of loans to custornets 25 (669,237) (647,866)
Other impairment and provisions 26 (300,170) (540,540)
Amortisation (171,086) (144,888)
Non-interest expenses (4,253,293) (4,499,825)
Profit/ (loss) befote corporate income tax benefit 2,723,847 (5,722,381)
Corporate income tax benefit 18 504,782 145,698
Profit/ (loss) for the yeat 3,228,629 (5,576,683)

Signed and authorized for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

- :

201 2
P o‘“s“hhrpof;m
LT Hy

‘:.{:l'-
° 0001 -
o o0 e A

Izbastin Kanysh Temirtayevich Chairman of the Management Board

Shodanova Gulnara Takishevna R ohebhy, o qs2 s, %f//&%f Chief accountant
Wy, Yol S
g ] g

18 March 2017

The accompanying notes on pages 6 1o 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.



KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company 2016 financial statements
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the yeat ended 31 December 2016

(thousands of tenge)

Notes 2016 2015
Profit/ (loss) for the year 3,228,629 (5,576,683)
Other comprehensive income for the year - =
Total comptehensive income / (loss) for the year 3,228,629 (5,576,683)

Signed and authorized for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

SRy,
‘*6““ 9013400(

Qo

5 s nom.,‘."‘o,a W
&7 3% oP Yo, i,
. . . .~ o .
Tzbastin Kanysh Temirtayevich §;§‘ R Chairman of the Management Board

P EL
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Y
/ Chief accountant

Shodanova Gulnara Takishevna i
Trigy g Wi €l
Fary, Ly e P

-d [ A

SFE A

18 March 2017

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 38 are an integral part of these financial staterments.
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KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company

2016 financial statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the yeat ended 31 December 2016

(thousands of tenge)
Notes 2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 21,400,923 16,198,885
Interest paid (7,556,872) (3,917,832)
Realised gains less losses from transactions with derivative financial assets 7 70,223 15,008
Personnel expenses paid (2,339,589) (2,381,558)
Other operating expenses paid (750,221) (815,003)
Other income received 258,194 923,201
Realised losses less gains from dealing in foreign currencies (130,688) (386,220)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating

assets and liabilities 10,951,970 9,636,481
Net decrease/ (increase) in operating assets
Amounts due from credit institutions 1,871,187 1,494,180
Derivative financial assets - 111
Loans to customers 3,026,777 (5,464,672)
Finance lease receivables (12,507,446) (26,983,980)
Assets held for sale - 5,895
Property held for finance lease - 3,756,988
VAT and other taxes receivable (319,875) (265,808)
Advances paid (120,144) (1,330,499)
Other assets (440,736) (16,072)
Net increase/ (decrease) in operating lhiabilities
Advances received 299,740 1,339,358
Other liabilities 1,383,809 (3,519,059)
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities before corporate

income tax 4,145,282 (21,347,077)
Corpotate income tax paid (268,167) (74,865)
Net cash received from / (used in) operating activities 3,871,115 (21,421,942)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of propesty and equipment and intangible assets (93,142) (192,366)
Proceeds from sale of propetty and equipment 1,682 -
Net cash used in investing activities (91,460) (192,860)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans due to the Shareholder 5,504,093 24883416
Repayment of loans due to the Shareholder (27,007,199) (18,107,533)
Proceeds from loans due to credit institutions 26,712,535 6,901,367
Repayments of loans due to credit institutions (17,621,359) (14,365,824)
Proceeds from debt securities issued 17 8,000,000 19,984,542
Dividends paid to the Shareholder 22 - (2,855,932)
Net cash (used in) / received from financing activities (4,411,930) 16,440,036
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (258,166) 5,523,279
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (884,441) 348,507
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 5 23,874,332 23,525,825
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 22,989,891 23,874,332
Signed and authorized for issue on bol¥ Boatd of the Company:

Izbastin Kanysh Temirtayevich

Shodanova Gulnara Takishevna o m o %
"J , . o o ’

18 Match 2017
The accompanying notes on pages 6 10 38 are an integral ]mﬂ of these financial statements.

Chief accountant

Chairman of the Management Board



KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company 2016 financial statements

(thousands of tenge)

1. Principal activities

KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company (hereinafter — the “Company’’) was established in accordance with the Resolution of
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 1777 dated 24 November 1999 On Certain Agricultnral Issues in accordance
with Kazakhstan legislation. The Company performs its activities on the basis of a license issued by the National Bank of the
Republic of Kazakhstan (hereinafter — “NBRK”) for conducting opetations specified by the banking legislation of the
Republic of Kazakhstan No. 16 dated 31 March 2006. In addition, the Company has a status of financial agency according to
the Resolution of the NBRIK No. 195 dated 23 September 2006.

The Company’s principal activities are as follows:
° leasing activities in agricultural sector;

. lending and other types of activity that ate not prohibited by the laws, cottespond with goals and objectives of the
Company and provided for by this Charter;

. participation in implementation of state budget and other programs aimed at the development of agticultural sector.
Registered office of the Company is located at the following address: 51, Kenesary Str., Astana, Republic of Kazakhstan.
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company has 15 registeted branches in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, “National Managing Holding “KazAgro” Joint Stock Company (hereinafter — “KazAgro”
ot the “Shareholder”) is a sole sharcholder of the Company. Ultimate shareholder of KazAgro is the Govetnment of the
Republic of Kazakhstan.

2. Basis of preparation

General
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Repotting Standards (“IFRS™).

These financial statements have been prepated under the historical cost convention except for mentioned in the Summaty of
accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Kazakhstan tenge (“tenge” or “KZT”), except for common share
carrying amounts calculations or unless otherwise is stated.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies of the Company were approved on 20 December 2013 according to the decision of the Board of
Directors of KazAgroFinance JSC No. 28. The Company has adopted the following amended IFRS which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

Amendments to LAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly change, the existing requirements of IAS 1. The amendments clarify:

° the materiality requirements in IAS 1;

° that specific line items in the statement(s) of profit ot loss and other comprehensive income and the statement of
financial position may be disaggregated,;

. that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements;

] that the share of other comprehensive incotne of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of
financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. These amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company.



KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company 2016 financial statements

(thonsands of tenge)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle

These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on ot after 1 January 2016. They include, in particular:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinned Operations

Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either through sale or through distribution to owners. The amendment
clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other would not be considered a new plan of disposal, rather
it is a continmation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in JFRS 5.
This amendment must be applied prospectively.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset.
An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement in IFRS 7 in
otder to assess whether the disclosures are required. The assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing
involvement must be done retrospectively. However, the required disclosutes would not need to be provided for any period
beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is a price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fait value measutement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset ot transfer the liability takes place either:

° in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous matket for the asset or liability.

The ptincipal or the most advantageous matket must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
matket participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are apptopriate in the citcumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categotized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

e Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

In the event of assets and liabilities recognised in the financial statements on a regular basis, the Company determines the fact
of transfer between levels of hierarchy sources by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant
for fair value evaluation in whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Information on fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost 1s disclosed in Noze 28.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit ot loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as approptiate. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets upon initial recognition, and subsequently can reclassify financial assets in certain cases as
described below.

Date of recognition

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ate recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Company commits
to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivety of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assels at fair value through profet or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’.
Derivative financial instruments embedded into othet financial insttuments or other host contracts as separate detivative
instruments, when their risks and characteristics are not related to those of the host contracts, and host contracts are not at
fair value though profit or loss with changes recognised in fair value in profit ot loss. Embedded detivative insttument is a
component of hybtid (combined) financial instrument, which includes both detivative and host contract, with the tesult that
a portion of cash flows on combined instrument vaties similar to derivative insttument. The Company entets into financial
derivatives contracts to manage currency risks.

The Company determines fair value using valuation method, usually applied by martket patticipants. As for embedded
derivative instruments assumptions are made on the basis of market rates adjusted by specific charactetistics of the insttument.
The Company uses Black-Scholes model to evaluate its financial instruments and assumptions used in valuation model (such
as 1isk free rates and volatility coefficients), are determined on the basis of financial instruments with similar characteristics
quoted at Bloomberg.

Loans to customers and receivables

Loans to customers are non-detivative financial assets with fixed or detetminable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, except assets, that are classified in other categoties of financial insttuments.

Loans to customers provided by the Company are initially tecorded at fait value plus transaction costs. When the Company
accepts a credit commitment to provide loans to customers at below market interest rates, a liability at fait value of these credit
commitments is recorded in other liabilitics in the statement of financial position together with reversing entry, which is
included in either statement of profit or loss if the decision to undettake the obligation was adopted by the Company’s
management; or as deemed distribution to the controlling shareholder, if the decision was adopted i accordance with
controlling shareholder’s instructions. Subsequently, credit commitment is adjusted to fais value through profit and loss before
granting a loan, when credit commitment is reduced by consideration paid, and remaining balance is recorded as loans issued
to customers in the statement of financial position. As a tesult, loans to customers are initially recognised at fair value in the
statement of financial position, and subsequently these loans are recorded at amottised cost, using the effective interest rate.
Loans to customers are recorded net of any allowance for impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-detdvative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified to any previously named categories.

After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets ate measured at fait value with gains or losses being recognised in
other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised ot until the investment is detetmined to be impaired. At
which time the cumulative gain ot loss previously reported in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of
profit ot loss. However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit ot loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Reclassification of financial assels

If a non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading is no longer held for the purpose of selling in the neat term, it
may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit ot loss category in one of the following cases:

° a financial asset that would have met the definition of loans and teceivables above may be reclassified to loans and
receivables category if the Company has the intention and ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or until maturity;

° other financial assets may be reclassified to available-fot-sale or held-to-maturity categories only in rare circumstances.

A financial asset classified as available for sale that would have met the definition of loans and receivables may be reclassified
to loans and receivables category if the Company has the intention and ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or untl
maturity.

Financial assets ate reclassified at their fair value on the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognised through
profit ot loss is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or
amortised cost, as applicable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash not restricted in use on current and term deposit accounts with maturity not more
than 90 (ninety) days as the day of the asset otigination.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, ot to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The right of set-off must not be contingent on a future event and must be legally
enforceable in all of the following circumstances:

° in the normal course of business;
° the event of default; and
. the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of an entity and all of the counterparties.

These conditions are not generally met in master netting agreements, and the telated assets and liabilities are presented gross
in the statement of financial position.

Borrowings

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as labilities, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in the Company having an obligation eithet to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to
satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
own equity instruments. Such instruments include amounts due to the shareholder, amounts due to credit mstitutions and
debt securities issued. After initial recognition, botrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit ot loss when liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the
amortisation process.

If the Company putchases its own debt, it is removed from the statement of financial position and the difference between the
carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Finance — Company as lessee

The Company recognises finance leases as assets and labilities in the statement of financial position at the date of
commencement of the lease term at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased propetty or, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Subsequently, lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding Hability. The finance charge is allocated to petiods during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Contingent rental payable are recognised as an expense
i the period in which they are incurred. Depreciation of leasing assets is charged in accordance with depreciation policy,
which is applied to assets owned by the Company.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Finance — Company as lessor

The Company recognises lease receivables at value equal to the net investment in the lease, starting from the date of
commencement of the lease term. Finance income is based on a pattetn reflecting a constant petiodic rate of return on the
net investment outstanding. Initial direct costs are recorded within the initial amount of lease receivables.

Operating — Company as lessee

Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are cffectively retained by the lessor are classifted as operating
leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term and
included into other operating expenses.

Impairment of financial assets

Amounts due from credit institutions, loans to customers and finance lease receivables

For amounts due from credit institutions, loans to customers and finance lease receivables carried at amortised cost, the
Company first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impaitment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
mpairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measuted as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected losses on
loans and finance lease receivables that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Intetest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount based on the otiginal effective interest rate of the asset. Loans, finance lease receivables
together with the associated allowance are wiitten off when thete is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occutring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss s increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is latet recovered, the recovery
is recognised in profit or loss.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. If a
loan/finance lease receivables has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the cuttent
effective interest rate. The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset
reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are gtouped on the basis of the Company’s internal
credit grading system that considers credit risk charactetistics such as asset type, industty, geographical location, collateral
type, past-due status and othet relevant factors.

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated fot impaitment ate estimated on the basis of
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Company. Historical loss experience
1s adjusted on the basis of cusrent observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the years on
which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are ditectionally consistent with, changes in related observable
data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment tates, propetty prices, commodity ptices, payment status, or other
factors that are indicative of incuired losses in the Company ot their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regulatly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the cutrent fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets catried at amortised cost. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Interest income is
tecorded in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

Restructuring of loans to customers and finance lease receivables

Where possible, the Company seeks to restructure loans / finance lease receivables rather than to take possession of collateral.
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.

The accounting treatment of such restructuring is as follows:

° If the cutrency of the loan / finance lease teceivables has been changed the old loan / finance lease receivables are
detecognised and the new loan / finance lease receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position;

. If the restructuring 1s not caused by the financial difficulties of the borrower / lessee, the Company uses the same
approach as for financial liabilities described below;

. If the loan restructuring is due to the financial difficulties of the borrower / lessee and the loan / finance lease
teceivables are impaired after restructuring, the Company recognizes the difference between the present value of the
new cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate and the cattying amount before restructuring in the
provision chatges for the period. In case loan / finance lease receivables are not impaired after restructuring the
Company recalculates the effective interest rate.

Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan / finance lease receivables are no longer considered past due. Management of
the Company continuously reviews renegotiated loan and finance lease receivables to ensure that all ctitetia are met and that
future payments are likely to occur. The loans and finance lease receivables continue to be subject to an individual or collective
impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s ot finance lease receivable’s original or current effective interest tate.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or patt of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
where:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or retained the right to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and

° the Company either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the tisks and rewatds of the asset, but has transferted control of the asset.

When the Company has transfetred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transfetred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the otiginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be requited to repay.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assefs and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Lability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Whete an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a detecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.

Taxation
The cutrent corporate income tax expenses ate calculated in accordance with the tax legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Deferred corporate income tax assets and labilities are calculated in respect of all temporary differences using the liability
method. Deferred income taxes are recognised in respect of all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying values for financial teporting purposes.

Defetred cotporate income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilised. Deferred corporate income
tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the petiod when the asset is realised or the
liability 1s settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company petforms offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and records them in the statement of
financial position on a net basis, when:

o the Company has a legally enforced right to offset current tax assets against current tax habilities; and

. defetred tax assets and deferted tax liabilities refer to corporate income tax charged by the same tax body from the
same tax payet.

The Company performs its activities in the Republic of IKazakhstan, and it is required to accrue and pay different taxes that
ate applied to the Company’s activities. These taxes are recorded in the statement of profit ot loss within other operating
expenses.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are cartied at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost is incurred if the
capitalization ctitetia are met.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the cartying value may not be recoverable.

Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, frora the time an asset is
completed and ready for use. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the individual assets:

Depreciation rare

Buildings and constructions 2%
Vehicles 10-14%
Computer hardware and office equipment 14-20%
Other 6-20%
Land 0%

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial year-end.
Costs telated to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating expenses, unless they qualify
for capitalization.

Property held for finance lease

Property held for finance lease is valued at the lower of acquisition cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated asset’s selling price in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, less the estimated costs to sell.

12
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include computet software and licenses.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial tecognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impaitment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over the useful economic lives of 1 to 10 years and assessed for impairment whenever thete is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.

Assets held for sale

The Company classifies a non-cutrent asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the non-cutrent asset must be available for immediate

sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be
highly probable.

The sale qualifies as highly probable if the Company’s management is committed to a plan to sell the non-current asset. An
active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated. Further, the non-current asset must have
been actively marketed for a sale at price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification of the non-current asset
as held for sale.

The Company measures an asset classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The Company recognises an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to
sell if events or changes in circumstance indicate that their catrying amount may be impaired.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a

result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be requited to settle the obligation.

Share capital

Share capital
Contributions to share capital are recognised at histotic cost less direct share issnance costs.
Additional paid-in capital

When the Company receives loans and other financial suppott from its Shareholder at below market rates, the difference
between received cash consideration and fair value of loans received is recorded as additional paid-in capital.

Reserve funds

Reserve funds may be increased through transfer of funds from retained earnings based on the decision of the Company’s
Shareholder.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity at the tepotting date only if they are approved befote or on
the reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the reporting date ot proposed or declated after
the reporting date but before the financial statements are authorised.

Reserve for notional distribution

When the Company enters into a loan agreement or finance lease agreements at below market rates on behalf of its
Shareholder, the difference between the amounts issued and fair value of provided loans ot finance lease is charged to equity
as deemed distribution to the Shareholder.

Segment reporting

Business and geographical segments of the Company wete not presented separately in these financial statements, since the
Company’s management believes that the chief operating segment for granting loans and finance lease ate agticultural entities
in the Republic of Kazakhstan, for which tisks and recoverability level ate considered to be the same throughout the country.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position but ate disclosed unless the possibility of any
outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not tecognised in the statement of financial position but disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Income and expense recognition

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition ctiteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest and similar income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and intetest bearing secutities classified as trading and available-fot-
sale instruments, interest income or expense is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shotter petiod, where
appropriate, to the net catrying amount of the financial asset or financial lability. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs
that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective intetest rate, but not future credit losses.
The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Company revises its estimates of payments ot
receipts. ‘The adjusted catrying amount is calculated based on the otiginal effective interest rate and the change in carrying
amount is recorded as interest income or expense.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss,
mnterest income continues to be recognised using the original effective interest rate applied to the new catrying amouant.

Fee and commission income
The Company earns commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers.

Loan commitment fees ate deferred together with any ditect costs and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest
rate on the loan. If there is a possibility that due to loan commitment a credit arrangement will be signed, loan commitment
fee is included in deferred income (together with corresponding direct costs), and subsequently is reflected as an adjustment
of actual proceeds from a loan. When the probability to enter into credit arrangement under loan commitments is temote,
loan commitment fees are recognised in the statement of profit or loss duting the remaining validity petiod of loan
commitment. Upon expiration of loan commitment validity period, which is not resulted in loan issuance, loan commitment
fees are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on its expiration date. Fees for loan servicing ate recognised upon
rendering of services. Loan syndication fees are tecognised in the statement of profit or loss when such setvices have been
provided. Other fees, commissions and other income and expense items ate recognised when the cotresponding setvice is
provided.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Kazakhstan tenge, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional curtency, convested at the rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are tetranslated into the functional
currency at the market exchange rate established on the reporting date. Gains and losses resulting from the translation of
foreign currency transactions ate recognised in the statement of profit ot loss as Net gains from foreign currencies. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cutrency ate translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetaty items measured at fair value in a foreign cutrency are ttanslated using the
official exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a transaction in a foreign currency and the KKazakhstan Stock Exchange
(“KASE”) exchange rate on the date of the transaction ate included in gains less losses from foreign cutrencies. Below ate the
exchange rates used by the Company in preparation of the financial statements:

2016 2015
Tenge/US Dollars 333.29 340.01
Tenge/Euto 352.42 371.46
Tenge/Russian Ruble 5.43 4.61
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Future changes in accounting policies
Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The standard and intetpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the company’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standatds, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the TASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of the financial
instruments project and teplaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as well as all previous version of
IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements to classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting.

From a classification and measurement perspective, the new standard will require all financial assets, except equity instruments
and detivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the
instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. The TAS 39 measurement categories will be replaced by: fair value through
profit ot loss, fair value through other comprehensive income, and amortised cost categories. IFRS 9 will also allow entities
to continue to itrevocably designate instruments that qualify for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income instruments as fair value through profit or loss, if doing so eliminates or significantly teduces a measurement ot
recognition inconsistency. Equity instruments that are not held for trading may be irrevocably designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income, with no subsequent reclassification of gains ot losses to the statement of profit or loss. The
accounting for financial liabilities will largely be the same as the requirements of IAS 39.

IFRS 9 will also fundamentally change the approach to loan impairment. The standard will replace IAS 39’s incurred loss
approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss approach. The Company will be required to tecord an allowance for
expected losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not cartied at fair value through profit ot loss, as well as for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The allowance is based on the expected credit losses associated with the
probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case the allowance would be based on the probability of default over the life of the asset.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective
application is requited, but restatement of comparative information is not required; the effect on the transition date — 1 Januaty
2018 — would be recorded in retained earnings. The adoption of IFRS 9 is expected to have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Company’s financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of the Company’s
financial labilities. Curtently the Company is evaluating impact on its equity due to adoption of IFRS 9 impairment
requirements and it will need to petform a more detailed analysis which considers all reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking elements to determine the extent of the impact.

IFRS 15 Revenne from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the TASB issued IFRS 15 Revennue from Contracts with Customers, effective for petiods beginning on 1 January 2018
with early adoption permitted. IFRS 15 defines principles for recognising revenue and will be applicable to all contracts with
customers. However, interest and fee income integral to financial instruments and leases will continue to fall outside the scope
of IFRS 15 and will be regulated by the other applicable standards (e.g., IFRS 9, and IFRS 16 Leases).

Revenue under IFRS 15 will need to be recognised as goods and setvices ate transferred, to the extent that the transferor
anticipates entitlement to goods and services. The standard will also specify a comprehensive set of disclosute requirements
regarding the nature, extent and timing as well as any uncertainty of revenue and corresponding cash flows with customers.

The Company does not anticipate early adopting TFRS 15 and is currently evaluating its impact.

IFRS 16 1 eases

The TASB issued the new standard for accounting for leases — IFRS 16 Leases in January 2016. The new standard does not
significantly change the accounting for leases for lessors. Howevet, it does require lessees to recognise most leases on their
balance sheets as lease liabilities, with the corresponding right of use assets. Lessees must apply a single model for all
recognised leases, but will have the option not to recognise ‘shott-term’ leases and leases of ‘low-value’ assets. Generally, the
profit or loss recognition pattern for recognised leases will be similar to today’s finance lease accounting, with interest and
depreciation expense recognised separately within profit or loss.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted provided the new
revenue standard, IFRS 15, is applied on the same date.

The Company does not anticipate eatly adopting IFRS 16 and is cutrently evaluating its impact.

15



KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company 2016 financial statements

(thousands of tenge)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Future changes in accounting policies (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to LAS 12 Income Taxes

In January 2016, through issuing amendments to TAS 12, the IASB clarified the accounting treatment of deferred tax assets
of debt instruments measuted at fair value for accounting, but measured at cost for tax purposes. The Company does not
anticipate that adopting the amendments would have a materdal impact on its financial statements.

Amendments to LAS 7 Siatement of Cash Flows

In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to [AS 7 Statemeni of Cash Plows with the intention to improve disclosutes of
financing activities and help users to better understand the reporting entities’ liquidity positions, Under the new requirements,
entities will need to disclose changes in their financial liabilities as a tesult of financing activities such as changes from cash
flows and non-cash items (e.g., gains and losses due to foreign currency movements). The amendment is effective from
1 January 2017. The Compan y 1s currently evaluating the impact.

Amendments to IFRS 2 S bhare-based Payment

The IASB issued amendments to TFRS 2 Share-based Payment in relation to the classification and measurement of share-based
payment transactions. The amendments are intended to eliminate diversity in practice, but are narrow in scope and address
specific areas of classification and measutement. The amendments addtess three main areas:

o The effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share based payment transaction.
. The classification of a share based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations.
. The accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a 'share based payment transaction changes its

classification from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The amendments are effective for annual petiods beginning on ot after 1 January 2018. On adoption, entities are required to
apply the amendments without testating prior periods, but tetrospective application is permitted if elected for all three
amendments and other critetia are met. Barly application is permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the Company.

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — Amendments 1o IFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments Standard, IFRS 9, before
implementing the new insurance contracts standard that the Boatd is developing to treplace IFRS 4. The amendments
introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts; a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay
approach. The optional tempotary exemption from IFRS 9 is available to entities whose activities are predominantly connected
with insurance. The temporaty exemption permits such entities to confinue fo apply TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement while they defer the application of IFRS 9 until 1 | anuary 2021 at the latest. The overlay approach requires an
entity to remove from profit or loss additional volatility that may arise if IFRS 9 is applied with IFRS 4.

The temporaty exemption is first applied for repotting petiods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. An entity may elect the
ovetlay approach when it first applies IFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial assets designated on
transition to IFRS 9. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.

4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recotded in the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a vatiety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical
models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
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4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which unused tax losses can be utilised. A significant judgement of management is requited to calculate the
amount of defetred income tax assets, which may be recognised in the financial statements based on possible dates of
generation and amount of future taxable profit as well as strategy of tax planning.

Allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables

The Company regularly reviews its loans to customers and finance lease receivables to assess impairment. The Company uses
its experienced judgement to estimate the amount of any impairment loss in cases where a botrower is in financial difficulties
and there are few available sources of historical data relating to similar botrowers. Similarly, the Company estimates changes
in future cash flows based on the observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
botrowers in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management
uses estimates based on historical loss expetience for assets with credit tisk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the group of loans and receivables. The Company uses its subjective judgement to adjust
observable data for a group of loans to customers or finance lease receivablés to reflect current circumstances.

Taxation

Kazakhstan tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can occur
frequently. Management’s interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of the Company may be
challenged by the respective local or state autherities. As such, significant additional taxes, penalties and intetest could be
assessed. 'T'ax periods temain open to inspection by respective authorities for 5 (five) calendar years preceding the year of tax
inspection. The inspection may covet longer petiods under certain circumstances.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the management believes that its interptetation of the legislation is appropriate and that
the Company’s tax, cutrency and customs positions will be sustained.
5. Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, cash and cash equivalents comprised the following:

2016 2015
Cash on curtent accounts with banks in foreign currency 12,605,518 11,374,345
Cash on current accounts with banks in tenge 10,384,373 12,499,987
Cash and cash equivalents 22,989,891 23,874,332

As at 31 December 2016, the cash on current accounts with one bank was equal to KZT 7,584,844 thousand or 33.0% of
total cash and cash equivalents (as at 31 December 2015: KZT 5,379,962 thousand ot 22.5%).

6. Amounts due from credit institutions

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, amounts due from credit institutions compsised the following:

2016 2015
Cash on curtent accounts restricted in use 662,881 2,549,777
Amounts due from credit institutions 662,881 2,549,777

Amounts on current accounts due from credit institutions represent testricted cash placed as collateral for letters of credit for
purchase of propetty held for finance lease.
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7. Derivative financial assets

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial assets recorded as assets ot liabilities, together with their notional
amounts:

2016 2015
Notional Fair values Notional Fair values
principal Asset Liability principal Asset Liability
Currency options in US Dollars 1,199,056 743,027 - 1,519,413 1,255,929 =
Curtency options in Euro 242,770 86,039 - 659,093 478,638 -
1,441,826 829,066 - 2,178,506 1,734,567 =

Options are contractual agteements that convey the right, but not the obligation, for the purchaser either to buy or sell a
specific amount of a financial instrument at a fixed price, either at a fixed futyre date or at any time within a specified period.

Net losses/gains from transactions with financial assets include the following, positions:

2016 2015
Realised gains from transactions with derivative financial assets 70,223 15,008
Untealised (losses)/gains from transactions with derivative financial assets (1,017,754) 1,265,844
Net (losses)/gains from transactions with derivative financial assets (947,531) 1,280,852
8. Loans to customers
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, loans to customers comptised the following:
2016 2015
Loans to legal entities 63,711,411 65,330,232
Loans to individuals - 4,197
Loans to customers before allowance for impairment 63,711,411 65,334,429
Less allowance for impairment (8,869,810) (5,594,631)
Loans to customers 54,841,601 59,739,798
Allowance for loans impairment
Movement of the allowance for impairment of loans to customers is as follows:
2016 2015

At 1 January 5,594,631 5,792,542
Charge/ (teversal) for the year 3,275,179 (197,911)
As at 31 December 8,869,810 5,594,631
Individual impairment 7,821,930 4,139,399
Collective impairment 1,047,880 1,455,232
As at 31 December 8,869,810 5,594,631
Total amount of loans to customers, individually determined to be

impaired, befote deducting allowance for impairment 16,698,431 12,131,796

Individually impaired loans

For the year ended 31 December 2016, interest income accrued on individually impaired loans to customets was equal to
KZT 2,486,815 thousand (for 2015: KZT 2,080,569 thousand).

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the countetpatty. Guidelines are
implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

. for commercial lending, charges over real estate properties, land, agricultural equipment, inventory and trade
receivables, guarantees;

. for retail lending, charges over residential properties.
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8. Loans to customers (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements (continued)

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accord
agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review

impairment.

Concentration of loans to customers

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had a concentration of loan

ance with the underlying
of the adequacy of the allowance for

s tepresented by KZT 2,168,720 thousand issued by the

Company to ten largest third parties ot 34.3% of gross loan portfolio (as at 31 December 2015: KZT 23,480,170 thousand ot
35.9% of gross loan portfolio). As at 31 December 2016, allowance for mmpairment on these loans of KZ'T 2,809,161 thousand

was recognised against these loans (as at 31 December 2015: KZ'T 2,352,907 thousand).

Loans are issued to customers in the Republic of Kazakhstan operating in the following economic sectors:

2016 2015
Agticulture 63,711,411 65,330,232
Construction - 4,197
Loans to customers 63,711,411 65,334,429
9. Finance lease receivables
As at 31 December 2016, the analysis of finance lease receivables is presented below:
Not later 1to Over
than 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
Gross investments in finance lease 60,796,212 153,879,474 86,980,230 301,655,916
Unearned finance income on finance lease of
future petiods (1,827,975) (38,506,768) (44,142,527) (84,477,270)
Total investments into finance lease 58,968,237 115,372,706 42,837,703 217,178,646
Less allowance for impairment (4,482,584) (11,152,713) (4,140,985) (19,776,282)
Net investment in finance lease 54,485,653 104,219,993 38,696,718 197,402,364
As at 31 December 2015, the analysis of finance lease receivables is presented below:
Not later 1¢o Over
than 1 year 5 years 5 years Toral
Gross investments in finance lease 52,439,105 135,729,038 69,548,149 257,716,292
Unearned finance income on finance lease of
future periods (1,425,604) (30,284,157) (29,509,294) (61,219,055)
Total investments into finance lease 51,013,501 105,444,881 40,038,855 196,497,237
Less allowance for impairment (3,619,194) (9,599,498) (3,645,061) (16,863,753)
Net investment in finance lease 47,394 307 95,845,383 36,393,794 179,633,484
Allowance for impairment of finance lease receivables
Movement of the allowance for impairment of finance lease teceivables is as follows:
2016 2015
At 1 January 16,863,753 12,062,962
Charge/ (reversal) for the year 2,912,529 4,809,700
Write-off for the year - (8,909)
As at 31 December 19,776,282 16,863,753
Individual impairment 12,224,787 10,858,508
Collective impairment 7,551,495 6,005,245
As at 31 December 19,776,282 16,863,753
Total amount of finance lease receivables, individually determined to be
impaired, before deducting allowance for impairment 35,845,856 34,858,743
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9. Finance lease receivables (continued)

Finance lease receivables individually assessed as impaired

For the year ended 31 December 2016, interest income accrued on finance lease recetvables, individually determined as
impaired, was equal to KZ/T' 5,498,708 thousand (for 2015: KZ'T' 4,837,443 thousand).

Concentration of finance lease receivables

As at 31 Decemhber 2016, the Company had a concentration of finance lease receivables represented by
KZT 33,916,954 thousand issued by the Company to ten largest third parties or 15.6% of gross finance lease receivables (as
at 31 December 2015: KZT 31,627,075 thousand or 16.1%). As at 31 December 2016, allowance for impairment on these
recetvables was equal to KZT 4,300,705 thousand (as at 31 December 2015: KZT 4,021,956 thousand).

10. Assets held for sale

During 2016, the Company transferred assets held for sale with cartying amount of KZT 508,034 thousand into property held
for finance lease.

11. Property held for finance lease

As at 31 December, property held fot finance lease comprises the following:

2016 2015

Equipment held for finance lease 5,008,181 7,924,117
Repossessed collateral 721,408 508,235
Other materials 15,228 15,394

5,744,817 8,447,746
Less allowance for impairment (Noze 26) (452,411) (853,339
Property held for finance lease 5,292,406 7,594,407
12. Property and equipment
Movements in propesty and equipment wete as follows:

Buildings Computers
and const- Motor  and office
Land ructions vehicles equipment Other Total
Cost
At 31 December 2014 31,922 847,303 134,636 401,047 105,264 1,520,172
Additions - - 25,710 73,098 5,235 104,043
Disposals - - (27,863) (34,663) (3,647) (66,173)
Loss from impairment of property
and equipment - - (967 - — (967)

At 31 December 2015 31,922 847,303 131,516 439,482 106,852 1,557,075
Additions - 3,186 - 37,888 4,958 46,032
Disposals - - (2,338) (25,710) (8,465) (36,513)
At 31 December 2016 31,922 850,489 129,178 451,660 103,345 1,566,594
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2014 - (158,023) (52,442) (157,117) (69,968) (437,550)
Charge - (23,553) (14,657) (55,374) (7,648) (101,232)
Disposals = — 21,969 34,644 3,132 59,745
At 31 December 2015 - (181,576) (45,130) (177,847) (74,484) (479,037)
Charge - (23,578) (14,792) (66,607) (7,637) (112,614)
Disposals - - 1,781 25,706 8,319 35,806
At 31 December 2016 - (205,154) (58,141) (218,748) (73,802) (555,845)
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 31,922 689,280 82,194 243,930 35,296 1,082,622
At 31 December 2015 31,922 665,727 86,386 261,635 32,368 1,078,038
At 31 December 2016 31,922, 645,335 71,037 232,912 29,543 1,010,749
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13. VAT and other taxes receivable

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, VAT and other taxes receivable comprise the following:

2016 2015
VAT receivable 1,859,679 1,553,585
Other taxes 14,347 566
VAT and other taxes teceivable 1,874,026 1,554,151
14. Advances paid
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, advances paid comprise the following:

2016 2015
Advances paid for agricultural machinery 179,190 1,291,287
Advances paid for equipment 10,770 4,100,451
Advances paid for great cattle - 158,703
Other advances paid . 123,931 617,243

313,891 6,167,684

Less allowance for impairment (Noz 26, ) . (29,147) . §171,238)_
Advances paid 284,744 5,996,446

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, advances paid represent prepayment for delivery of agticultural machinery, equipment and
cattle stock for further transfer to finance lease.

15. Amounts due to the Shareholder

2016 2015
Loans from the Shareholder 85,638,633 ) 104,286,082 )
Amounts due to the Shareholder 85,638,633 104,286,082

Investment loan

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the due to the Shareholder includes the amount due under the | ‘ramework Loan
Agreement No, 35 (the “Agreement”). In accordance with this Agreement, the Company obtains a long-term investment loan to
develop, expand and modify matetial production in agricultural sector. Proceeds from the loan are used Ly the Company 1o
finance long term investment projects. The funding is cartied out by the Shareholder from the National Fund under bond
program through NBRK. The agreement is effective until 30 December 2013. As at 31 Decem ber 2016 and 2015, the financing
limit under the Agreement amounted to KZT 1 13,459,000 thousand with a nominal interest rate of 1.02% per annum. The
effective interest rate on loans received equalled to 6.0% per annum. As at 31 December 2016, the amount due under this
Agreement is KZT 59,453,707 thousand (as at 31 December 2015 KZT 70,419,859 thousand).

On 24 June 2014, the Company and the Shareholder entered into the framework loan agreement No. 63 in the amount of
KZT 30,363,131 thousand for aperiod of 7 (seven) years and a nominal interest rate of 5.8% perannum. As at 31 December
2016, the amount due under this Agreement is KZT 12,149,796 thousand (as at 31 December 2015: KZT 21,834 447 thousand).

On 23 September 2014, the Company and the Shateholder entered into 2 framework agreement No. 113 for a loan in the
amount of KZT 14,272,998 thousand for the period of 9 (nine) years and an interest rate of 10% per annum subject to
subsidizing by the govemment, of which 7% is subsidized by the government and 3% per annum is paid by the Company. As
at 31 December 2016, the amount due under this Agreement is KZT 6,666,979 thousand (as at 31 December 2015:
K7ZT 6,862,841 rhousand}.

On 1 October 2014, the Company and the Shateholder entered info the loan agteement No. 118 in the amount of
KZT 6,189,000 thousand for a period of 7 (seven) yeats and with nominal interest rate of 1.02% pet annum, the effective
Interest rate on loan amounts to 7.17% per annum. As at 3] December 2016, the amount due under this Agreement is
KZT 4,425 369 thousand (as at 31 December 2015 KZT 5,168,935 rhousand).

On 12 May 2016, the Company and the Shateholder entered into the loan agreement No. ¢4 in the amount of
KZT 3,800,000 thousand for a petiod of 7 (seven) years and with nominal interest rate of 1.02% per annum, the effective
inferest rate on loan amounts to 11.97% per annum. As at 31 December 2016, the amount due under this Agreement is
KZT 2,942,782 thousand (as at 31 December 2015 nil).
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16. Amounts due to credit institutions

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, amounts due to credit institutions comprise:

Currency Marurity Interest rare, % 2016 2015
Islamic Development Bank US Dollars 21 September 2020 6.0% 7,101,016 8,747,570
Eurasian Development Bank Tenge 7 and 14 July 2017 15.0% 6,249,375 —
Societe Generale Bank US Dollars 20 May 2020 6 months LIBOR + 3.0% 5,863,642 7,689,484
SB Sberbank of Russia JSC Tenge 16 June 2021 14.0% 4,036,736 -
19 March 2018 and
Furasian Development Bank Tenge 6 April 2018 14.0% 3,597,318 -
Roseksimbank JSC Russian Rouble 20 December 2023 5.75% 3,223,608 -
BOT Lease Co. Ltd uro 22 December 2021 4.0% 2,822,493 —
Deere Credit, Inc. US Dollars 20 November 2019 5.6% 2,231,294 3,035,521
Landesbank Berlin AG Furo 30 December 2019 6 months BEURIBOR + 1.15% 1,465,250 2,062,249
GazPromBank JSC US Dollars 30 April 2019 4.3% 863,359 1,239,740
Rosselhozbank JSC US Dollars 24 April 2019 4.9% 679,990 852,247
SB Sberbank of Russia JsC Russian Rouble 16 June 2021 16.0% 553,603 —
Rosselhozbank JsC US Dollars 24 May 2018 4.9% 543,430 931,222
CNH International SA US Doliars 2 June 2018 6.0% 325,258 553,034
Deere Credit, Inc, US Dollars 15 November 2018 5.9% - 3,475,933
Deere Credit, Inc. US Dollars 15 March 2018 LIBOR + 2.3% - 1,656,906
Landesbank Berlin AG Euro 28 August 2016 6 months EURIBOR +
1.0% + spread for financing - 180,396
Amounts due to credit
institutions 39,556,372 30,424,302

Restrictive covenants

In accordance with the terms of the credit organization loan agreements, the Company is required to comply with certain
financial covenants. In particular, under the agreement with the Eurasian Development Bank, the Company is obliged to
comply with prudential standards established for KazAgro’s subsidiaries in the agro-industrial complex area of the Republic
of Kazakhstan. Under a loan agreement with Societe Generale Bank, the Company should comply with certain ratio between
the operating profit (EBI'T) and interest expenses, as well as prudential standards established for subsidiaries of KazAgro in
the area of agro-industrial complex of the Republic of Kazakhstan, and interest expense coverage ratio,

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company complied with the requirements related to restrictive covenants under the
agreements with these credit organizations.
Credit lines

Under the Agreement for opening of a letter of credit dated 24 April 2014 with Rosselkhozbank JSC, the Company disbursed
funds in the amount of USD 3,681 thousand (or KZT 1,227,040 thousand). As at 31 December 2016, the amount due under
this Agreement was equal to USD 2,027 thousand or KZ'T 679,990 thousand.

17. Debt securities issued

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, debt securities issued comptise the following:

Maturity Rare, %  Currency 2016 2015
Third issue of bonds as part of
the first bond program 16 January 2023 8.0% Tenge 16,802,814 16,716,868
First issue of coupon bonds 12 June 2024 8.5% Tenge 3,944,692 3,942,566
Second issue of coupon bonds 12 June 2022 8.5% Tenge 17,985,346 17,964,960
Second issue of bonds as part of
the second bond program 14 November 2021  15.0% Tenge 8,108,287 -
Debt securities issued 46,841,139 38,624,394

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company’s debt securities issued are tepresented by bonds issued in tenge.

In November 2016, the Company placed bonds with a total nominal value of KZT 8,000,000 thousand at KASE with wide
range of investors for a petiod of 5 (five) years with an intetest rate of 15% pet annurm.
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18. Taxation

The cotporate income tax benefit comptises:

2016 2015
Current corporate income tax expenses = e
Deferted corporate income tax (benefit)/charge — origination and reversal of

temporary differences (327,373) 429,404

Less: deferred cotporate income tax tecognised in equity (177,409) (575,102)
Corporate income tax benefit (504,782) (145,698)
Deferted corportate income tax tecognised in equity is allocated as follows:

2016 2015
By assets 81,087 290,472
By liabilities (258,496) (865,574
Corporate income tax recognised in equity . (177,409) (575,102

As at 31 December 2016, current corporate income tax prepaid of the Company was equal to KZT 894,899 thousand (as at
31 December 2015: KZT 626,732 thousand).

in 2016 and 2015.

The effective cotporate income tax rate differs from the statutory cotporate income tax rate. Below is the reconciliation of
cotporate income tax expenses based on statutory rate with corporate income tax benefit recorded in the financial statements:

2016 2015

Profit/ (loss) before corporate income tax 2,723,847 (5,722,381)
Statutory cotporate income tax rate 20% 20%
Theoretical corporate income tax expenses / (benefit) at the statutory

rate 544,769 (1,144,476)
Non-taxable interest income on finance lease reccivables (2,348,500) (73,943)
Non-deductible expenses:
- allowance for impairment of loans to customers and finance lease receivables 1,227,003 962,341
- allowance for impairment of property held for finance lease 64,564 75,048
- expenses not related to principal activities 5,733 21,683
- fines and penalties on taxes 1,649 13,649
Corporate income tax benefit (504,782) (145,698)
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18. Taxation (continued)

31 December:

Origination and decrease

2016 financial statements

Origination and decrease

of temporary differences of temporary differences
in the in the
statement staterment
of profit or or profit or
2014 loss in equity 2015 loss in equity 2016
Tax effect of deductible temporary T
differences
Loans to customers 908,185 (205,474) 290,472 993,183 (254,0006) 81,087 820,264
Finance lease receivables 64,859 (64,859) - - = < -
Provisions for unused vacations 44,241 3,400 - 47,650 1,956 - 49,606
Guarantees 36,840 = — 36,840 ~ - 36,840
Property and equipment and
intangible assets - ~ — —~ 7,330 - 7,330
Deferred corporate income tax B
assets 1,05@25 (266224) 290,472 1,077,673 (24@) 81,087 914,040
Tax effect of taxable temporary
differences
Detivative financial assets (93,767) (253,146) - (346,913) 181,100 - (165,813)
Finance lease receivables - (76,684 - (76,684) (353,166) - (429,850)
Amounts due from credit institutions (34,400) (21,153) - (55,553) 31,276 - (24,277)
Amounts due to the Sharcholder (2,927,880) 763,976 (865,574)  (3,029,478) 860,599 (258,496) (2,427,375)
Property and equipment and
mtangible assets (29,322 __ @y — (29,693) 29,693 - -
Deferred corporate income tax
liabilities (3,085,369) 412,622 (865,574) (3,538,321 749,502 (258,496) (3,047,315)
Net defetred corporate income tax
Liability (2,031,244) 145,698 (575,102) _ (2,460,648) 504,782 (177,409) (2,133,275)
Deferred corporate income tax as sets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will be

available against which an asset can he

longer probable that a respective tax benefit will be realised.

19. Advances received

As at 31 December 201 6, advances received in the amount of KZT
KZT 4,760,927 thousand) represent prepayment from clients for

agreements or finance lease agreements but still not transfetred to lessees.

20. Other assets and other liabilities

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, other assets comptise the fo]lowing:

Accounts receivable
Deferred expenses
Other assets

Less allowance for impairment (Note 26 )
Other assets

property held for finance lease and

uttlized. Deferred cotporate income tax assets are decreased to the extent that it is no

2,502,225 thousand (as at 31 December 2015
acquired under loan

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, other liabilites comprise the following:

Payables to suppliers

Deferred interest income

Amounts due to employees

Taxes other than corporate income tax payable
Other current liabilities

Other liabilities

2016 2015
942,276 645,017
145,983 50,131

85 547
1,088,344 695,695
(604,083) (514,876)

484,261 180,819
2016 2015
5,482,712 5,233,635
1,724,638 1,016,887
294,027 270,531
107,991 73,570
188,865 184,211
7,798,233 6,778,834
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20. Other assets and other liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the payables to suppliers comprise the following:

2016 2015
Agticultural machinery 2,588,320 1,397,778
Equipment 2,765,340 2,800,004
Great cattle - 2,508
Other liabilities 129,052 1,033,345
Payables to suppliers 5,482,712 5,233,635

21. Commitments and contingencies

Operating environment

Republic of Kazakhstan continues economic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks as required
by a market cconomy. The future sta bility of the Kazakhstan economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and
developments and the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government.

In 2016, low prices for crude oil and the voladlity of the KZT exchange rate against major foreign currencies continued to
have a negative impact on the Kazakhstan economy. Interest rates in KZT remain high. The combination of these factors,
along with other factors, led to a decrease in the availabi]jty of capital, increase in the cost of capital, higher inflation and
uncertainty about economic growth. The management of the Company believes that it is taking appropriate measures to
support the sustainability of the Company’s business in the current circumstances.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management believes that the
ultimate liability, if any, atising from such actions or complaints, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
conditions of the results of futute opetations of the Company.

Management is unaware of any significant actual, pending or threatened claims against the Company.

Taxation

Commercial, and in particulat, tax legislation in Kazakhstan contains regulations, interptetation of which could vary, and in
certain cases the legislation could be amended with indirect retrospective impact. In addition, Company’s management’s
interpretation of the legislation may differ from that of fax authorities, and in the result transactions carried out by the
Company could be estimated by tax authorities in other way, and this could result in additional charge of taxes, fines and
penalties. The Company’s management considers that all necessary tax accruals were fulfilled and, correspondingly, there were
no any allowances charged in the financial statements. Tax periods remain open for 5 (five) years.

Credit related commitments

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, credit related commitments and contingencies of the Company comprise:

2016 2015
Undrawn credit lines 3,605,734 5,750,161
Guarantees issued 2,342,807 2,827,399 )
Total 5,948,541 8,577,560

On 16 June 2011, the Company entered into the agreement for granting a financial guarantee in the amount of
6,661,130 Islamic dinars to Tslamic Development Bank to ensure obligations of Fund for financial support of agriculture JSC
under the loan arrangement. This guarantee was secured by counter-guarantee of KazAgro. As at 31 December 2016, the
amount of the loan obtained by Fund for financial support of agriculture JSC totalled to USD 7,029 thousand, or
KZT 2,342,807 thousand (as at 31 December 2015: USD 8,316 thousand or KZT 2,827,399 thousand).

22, Equity

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, authotized and paid common shates of the Company in the amount of 82,837,204 shares
have been fully paid by the sole Shareholder of the Company at the placement value of KZT 1 thousand per one common
share.

In accordance with the decision of the sole Shareholder dated 30 A pril 2015, the Company declared dividends for 2014 in the
amount of KZT 2,855,932 thousand or KZT 34.48 per one common share. As at 31 December 2015 the dividends were fully
paid. There were no dividends declared of paid on common shares in 2016.
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22, Equity (continued)

In accordance with the regulation of the Company, reserve funds are made for general risks including futute losses and other
unforeseen risks and obligations. Reserve funds are subject to disttibution on the basis of the decision of the sole Shareholder.

Presented below is movement in items of additional paid-in capital and reserves:

Provision for
Addjtional paid- Reserve notional
In capital funds distribution
Aa at 31 December 2014 18,786,572 1,436,184 (7,885,776)
Reserve for notional distribution for the yeat ~ - (1,452,361)
Tax effect of tecognition of reserve for notional
distribution (Noze 78) - - 290,472
Gain on initial recognition of loans due to the Shareholder
at fait value 4,327,868 - —
Tax effect on initial recognition of loans due to the
Shateholder at fair value (Nozz 18 ) (865,574) - —
As at 31 December 2015 . 22,248,866 1,436,184 (9,047,665)
Reserve for notional disttibution for the yeatr - - (405,437)
Tax effect of recognition of teserve for notional
distribution (Noze 18) - - 81,087
Gain on initial recognition of loans due to the Shareholder
at fair value 1,292,483 - -
Tax effect on initial recognition of loans due to the
Shateholder at fair value (Noz 18 ) (258,496) - =
As at 31 December 2016 23,282,853 1,436,184 (9,372,015)

As at 31 December 2016 the Company’s book value pet one common share, calculated in accordance with KASE
methodology, was KZT 1,196.94 (as at 31 December 2015: KZT 1,149.26):

2016 2015
Assets 286,783,222 285,298,280
Less intangible assets (216,334) (227,695)
Less liabilities (187,415,397) (189,868,721)
Net assets 99,151,491 95,201,864
Numbert of common shates as at 31 December, shates 82,837,204 82,837,204
Book value per one common share (in tenge) 1,196.94 1,149.26
23. Other income
Other income comptises the following;

2016 2015
Income from finance lease items subject to return 451,571 595,603
Income from teimbursement of expenses 148,118 114,367
Gain from write-off of liabilities 80,654 122,692
Fines and penalties received 30,469 56,312
Other 167,490 41,352
Other income 878,302 930,326

Fines and penalties were teceived by the Company from suppliers for untimely delivery of equipment held for finance lease.
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24. Personnel and other operating expenses

Personnel and other operating expenses comptise the following:

2016 2015
Personnel expenses (2,167,267) (2,146,064)
Social security costs (213,063) (209,170)
Personnel expenses (2,380,330) (2,355,234)
Lease (116,015) (117,791)
Professional services (113,213) (88,539)
Repair and maintenance (78,387) (81,218)
Taxes other than corporate income tax (75,406) (140,323)
Advertising and marketing (67,038) (69,293)
Business trip expenses (50,328) (45,659)
Bank fees (41,627) (50,506)
Materials (41,268) (37,928)
Communication (34,270) (36,716)
Insurance (27,570) (17,406)
Trainings (14,210) (5,242)
Legal expenses (10,128) (2,988)
Office supplies (8,208) (7,854)
Utility costs (5,732) (4,929)
Sponsorship (2,979) (54,999)
Social program expenses (2,209) (2,115)
Other (43,882) {47,791)
Other operating expenses (732,470) (811,297)

25. Net loss from restructuring of loans to customers

In the normal course of business, the Company revises the terms of loans to customers by providing the grace period and
allowing early repayment due to events not related to impairment of loans. The effect of changes in the carrying amount due
to the revision of the terms of loans to customers is recognised in profit or loss. In 2016, the net loss from testructuring of
loans to customers was equal to KZT 669,237 thousand (in 2015: KZT 647,866 thousand).

26. Other impairment and provisions

Movements in allowance for other impairment and other provisions were as follows:

Property
held for Advances Other  Property and

finance lease paid assets equipment Toral
As at 31 December 2014 620,306 116,529 409,786 - 1,146,621
Charge for the year 374,276 54,709 110,588 967 540,540
Wiite-off for the year (141,243) — (5,498) — (146,741)
As at 31 December 2015 853,339 171,238 514,876 967 1,540,420
Chatge/(reversal) for the year 322,820 (141,910) 119,260 - 300,170
Write-off for the year (723,748) (181) (30,053) (967) (754,949)
As at 31 December 2016 452,411 29,147 604,083 -~ 1,085,641

Provisions for impairment of assets are deducted from the carrying amount of related assets.

27. Risk management

Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, The Company manages these risks through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of tisk management is critical to the
Company’s continuing profitabili ty and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to
his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, the latter being subdivided
into trading and non-trading risks. It also subject to operating risks.
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27.  Risk management (continued)

Introduction (continued)

The independent tisk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment, technology and
industry. They are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning process.

Rusk management structure

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks, however, there ate separate independent
bodies responsible for managing and monitoting risks.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk strategies and
principles.

Management Board

The Management Boatd has the tresponsibility to monitor the overall risk process within the Company.

Risk management

The Risk Management Unit is tesponsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent
control process.

Control of risks

The Risk Controlling Unit is responsible for moniforing compliance with risk ptinciples, policies and limits, across the
Company. The Company’s structure comptises a separate unit that is directly subordinate to the Board of Directors and which
is responsible for the independent control of tisks, including monitoring the risk of exposutes against limits and the assessment
of risks of new products and structured transactios, This unit also ensures the complete capture of the risks in risk
measurement and reporting systems. There are tisk managers for the purpose of risk controlling in the branches of the
Company.

Treasury

The Company’s Treasury is tesponsible for managing the Company’s assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure.
It is also primatily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

Internal audi

The objective of internal audit is to provide the Board of Ditectors with independent, objective and unbiased information
based on annual audits, both adequacy of procedures and compliance with these procedures by the Com pany. Internal Audit
discusses the results of all assessments with management, and reports its findings and tecommendations directly to the Boards
of Directors.

Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Company’s risks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances
and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical models. The models make use of
probabilities derived from historical expetience, adjusted to reflect the economic environmen t. The Company also runs worst
case scenarios that would arise in the event that extreme events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitoting and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Company. These limits reflect the
business strategy and marker environment of the Company as well as the level of risk that the Company is willing to accept,
with additional emphasis on selected industries. In addition the Company monitors and measures the overall risk bearing
capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risks types and activities.

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyse, control and identify early risks.
This information is presented to the Board of Directors, Management Board, Credit Committee and the heads of departments.
The report includes agprepate credit exposure, credit metric forecasts, hold limit exceptions, value at 1isk, liquidity ratios,
interest tisk ratios and risk profile changes.

For all levels throughout the Company, specifically tailoted risk teports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that
all business divisions have access to extensive, necessary and up-to-date information.
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27. Risk management (continued)

Introduction (continued)

Risk measurement and reporting systems (continsed)

The Company’s Management Board and other relevant employees meetings are regularly held to discuss maintenance of
established limits and analyse value at risk, investments, liquidity, and risk developments.

Risk mitigation

As part of its overall risk management, the Company uses derivatives and other instruments to manage exposures resulting
from changes in interest rates, foreign currencies and exposures atising from forecast transactions.

The Company actively uses collateral to reduce its credit risks (additional information is presented below).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties failed to discharge
their contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing
to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in
relation to such limits.

The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral tevisions. Counterpatty limits are established by the use of a
credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating, Risk tatings ate subject to regular tevision. The
credit quality review process allows the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and
undertake corrective action.

Derivative financial instruments

Credit risk atising from detivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded
in the statement of financial position.

Credit-related commitments risks

The Company makes available to its customers guatantees which may require that the Company make payments on their
behalf. Such payments are collected from customers based on the terms of the letter of credit. They expose the Company to
similat risks to loans and these are mitigated by the same control processes and policies.

The carrying amount of components of the statement of financial position, including detivatives, without the influence of risk
mitigation through the use of master netting agreements and collateral agreements, most accurately reflects the maximum
credit exposure on these components.

Whete financial instruments are recorded at fair value, their carrying amounts represent the current credit risk exposure but
not the maximum tisk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.

For mote detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instrument, teferences shall be made to
the specific notes. The effect of collateral and other risk mitigation techniques is shown in Noz 8.

Credit gnality per class of financial assels

‘The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company’s internal credit/ratings. The table below shows the credit
quality by class of asset for loan-related statement of financial position lines, based on the Company’s credit rating system.
The bortowers with good financial position and good debt setvice are included in the standard grade. Sub-standard grade
comptises loans below standard grade that are collectively assessed.

Neither past due nor

Impaired individually Past due bur

Standard  Substandard not impaired Individually
As at 31 December 2016 prade grade  individuaily impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents 22,989,891 - - - 22,989,891
Amounts due from credit institutions 662,881 - - - 662,881
Derivative financial assets 829,066 - - - 829,066
Loans to customers 4,367,374 22,438,532 20,207,074 16,698,431 63,711,411
Finance lease receivables 7,849,251 166,318,432 7,165,107 35,845,856 217,178,646

Total 36,698,463 188,756,964 27,372,181 52,544,287 305,371,895
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27. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Chredit quality per class of financial assets (continned)

Neither past due nor

impaired individually Past due bur
Standard  Substandard not impaired  Individually
As at 31 December 2015 Zrade grade  individually Iimpaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents 23,874,332 - - - 23,874,332
Amounts due from credit institutions 2549777 - — — 2,549,777
Derivative financial assets 1,000,497 — = 734,070 1,734,567
Loans to customers 9,162,110 20,458,128 14,582,395 12,131,796 65,334,429
Finance lease receivables 9,081,318 142,119,747 10,437,429 34,858,743 196,497 237
Total 45,668,134 171,577,875 25,019,824 47,724,609 289,990,342

Lt is the Company’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio. This facilitates focused
management of the applicable risks and the compatison of credit exposures across all lines of business, geographic regions
and products.

Ageing analysis of past due but not impaired loans per class of financial assets

Overdue but not indivicually impaired loans to customers and financial lease receivables are as follows:

Less than Over
2016 30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90 days Total
Loans to customers 2,773,442 2,095,870 1,018,383 14,319,379 20,207,074
Finance lease receivables 480,442 574,109 352,474 5,758,082 7,165,107
Total 3,253,884 2,669,979 1,370,857 20,077,461 27,372,181
Less than Over
2015 30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90 days Total
Loans to customers 2,054,129 2,721,309 267,450 9,539,507 14,582,395
Finance lease receivables 3,377,998 612,649 399,791 6,046,991 10,437,429
Total 5,432,127 3,333,958 667,241 15,586,498 25,019,824

See Notes 8 and 9 for more detailed information with tespect to the allowance for impairment of loans to customers and
finance lease receivables.

Impaz’mmz’ assessment

The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment comptise: whether any payments of principal or interest are
overdue by more than 90 days or there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of countetparties, credit rating downgrades,
or infringement of the otiginal terms of the contract. The Company addresses impairment assessment in two areas: individually
assessed allowances and collectively assessed allowances.

Individually assessed allowances

The Company determines the allowances apptopriate for each individually significant loan on an individual basis. Ttems
considered when determining allowance amounts include: the sustainability of the counterparty’s business plan; its ability to
improve performance once a financial difficulty has arisen; projected receipts and the expected dividend payout should
bankruptcy ensue; the availability of other financial support and the realisable value of collateral, taking into account its
specifics, and the timing of the expected cash flows. The impairment losses are evaluated at each reporting date, unless
unforeseen circumstances requite more careful attention.

Collectively assessed allowances

Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans to customers that ate not individually significant (including residential
mortgages and unsecured consumer lending) and for individually significant loans where there is no objective evidence of
individual impairment, Allowances are evaluated on each repotting date with each portfolio receiving a separate review.
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27. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Collectively assessed allowances (continned)

The collective assessment takes account of impairment that is likely to be present in the pottfolio even though thete is no
objective evidence of the impairment in an individual assessment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration
the following information: historical losses on the portfolio, cutrent economic conditions, the appropriate delay between the
time a loss is likely to have been incurred and the time it will be identified as requiting an individually assessed impairment
allowance, and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired. Local management is responsible for deciding the length of
this period which can extend for as long as one year. The impairment allowance is then teviewed by credit management to
ensure alignment with the Company’s overall policy.

Financial guatantees and letters of credit are assessed and provision made in a similar manner as for loans.

The geographical concentration of Company’s financial assets and liabilities is set out below:

2016 2015
Kazakhstan OECD Ccls Total Kazakhstan OECD CIS Total

Assets
Cash and cash

equivalents 22,989,891 - - 22,989,891 23,874,332 = - 23,874,332
Amounts due from

credit institutions 662,881 - - 662,881 2,549,777 - - 2,549,777
Derivative financial

assets 829,066 - - 829,066 1,734,567 - - 1,734,567
Loans to customers 54,841,601 - - 54,841,601 59,739,798 - — 59,739,798
Finance lease

receivables 197,402,364 - - 197,402,364 179,633,484 - - 179,633,484
Other financial assets 338,193 - - 338,193 130,141 - — 130,141

277,063,996 - - 277,063,996 267,662,009 = - 267,662,009

Liabilities
Amounts due to the

Shareholder 85,638,633 - - 85,638,633 104,286,082 — — 104,286,082
Amounts due to credit

institutions 4,590,339 29,655,646 5,310,387 39,556,372 - 27,401,093 3,023,209 30,424,302
Debt securities issued 46,841,139 - - 46,841,139 38,624,394 — - 38,624,394
Other financial

liabilities 1,807,414 2,613,751 1,061,547 5,482,712 392,374 3,744,454 1,096,807 5,233,635

138,877,525 32,269,397 6,371,934 177,518,856 143,302, 850 31,145,547 4,120,016 178,568,413

Net position on
assets and liabilities 138,186,471 (32,269,397) (6,371,934) 99,545,140 124,359,249 (31,145,547) (4, 120,016) 89,093,686

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal
and stress circumstances. T'o limit this risk, the management has arranged diversified funding sources. Also, it manages assets
with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of
expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual matnritios

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at 31 December based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments, which are subject to notice ate treated as if notice were to be given
immediately. However, the Company expects that many creditors will not request repayment on the earliest date the Company
could be required to pay.

Less than 3o 1to Over
As at 31 December 2016 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
Amounts due to the Shareholder 6,000,981 15,219,399 76,681,058 7,421,201 105,322,639
Amounts due to credit institutions 1,748,536 13,555,468 26,787,240 - 42,091,244
Debt securities issued 678,500 3,743,400 44,934,925 22,094,625 71,451,450
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 8,428,017 32,518,267 148,403,223 29,515,826 218,865,333
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27. Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk and funding management (continued)

Analysis of financial habilities by remaining contractual maturities (continned)

Less than 3 to 1o Over
As at 31 December 2015 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
Amounts due to the Shareholder 6,453,293 16,704,839 78,244,721 24,464,807 125,867,660
Amounts due to credit institutions 1,569,261 7,815,783 24,722,984 - 34,108,028
Debt securities issued 678,500 2,543,400 12,887,600 45,763,850 61,873,350
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 8,701,054 27,064,022 115,855,305 70,228,657 221,849,038

The table below shows the contractual expity by maturity of the Company’s contractual commitments and contingencies.
Each undrawn commitment on lending is included in the time band containing the eatliest date it can be drawn down. In the
case of financial guarantee contracts the maximum amount of guarantee applies to the earliest period in which this guarantee
may be called (Noze 27).

Less than 3o 1ro More than

3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Toral
2016 910,955 2,241,279 2,603,767 192,540 5,948,541
2015 757,548 5,200,588 2,362,388 257,036 8,577,560

The Company expects that not all of the contingent liabilities or commitments will be drawn before expiry of the
commitments.

"The Company’s capability to meet its liabilities depends upon its ability to tealise an equivalent amount of assets within the
certain period of time.

The Company has received significant funds from the Shareholder. Management believes that this level of funding will remain
with the Company for the foreseeable future and that in the event of withdrawal of funds, the Company would be given
sufficient notice so as to realise its liquid assets to enable repayment.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
vatiables such as interest rates, foreign exchanges, and equity prices. The market risk for the non-trading portfolio is managed
and monitored using sensitivity analysts. Bxcept for the concentrations within foreign currency, the Company has no

significant concentration of market risk.
Market risk — non-teading

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments, The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a teasonable possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company’s statement of profit or loss.

The sensitivity of the statement of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the net interest
income for one year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December.

Increase in  Sensitivity of net Sensitivity of

basis points interest income equity

Currency 2016 2016 2016
Euro 100 (15,416) (15,416)
US Dollar 100 (64,119) (64,119)
Increase in  Sensitivity of net Sensitivity of

basis points Interest income equity

Currency 2015 2015 2015
Euro 100 (70,097) (70,097)
US Dollar 100 (15,379) (15,379)
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27. Risk management (continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Management Board has set limits on positions by curtency based on the NBRIC tecommendations. Positions are monitored
on a daily basis,

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposure at 31 Decembet on its non-trading
monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement
of the currency rate against the KZT, with all other variables held constant on the statement of profit or loss (due to the fair
value of curtency sensitive trading monetary assets). The effect on the equity does not differ from the effect on the statement
of profit or loss. All other parameters are held constant. A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in
statement of profit or loss ot equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

Change in Eftect on profit Change in Effect on profit
currency rate % before tax currency rate % before tax
Currency 2006 2016 2015 2015
US dollar ~13% 914,056 -60% (13,142,654)
US dollar 13% (914,056) 20% 4,380,885
Euro -15% 576,706 -60% 6,440
Euro 15% (576,706) 20% (2,147)
Russian rouble ~23% 993,514 -40% (17,452)
Russian rouble 19% (820,729) 29% 12,652

Prepayment risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or
request repayment earlier or later than expected, such as fixed rate mottgages when interest rates fall.

If 10% of loan pottfolio were to prepay at the beginning of 2016, with all other variables held constant, the profit before
cotporate income taxes would be increased by KZT 350,510 thousand (in the beginning of 2015: would be increased by KZT
223,937 thousand).

[£ 10% of debt instruments were to prepay at the beginning of 2016, with all other variables held constant, the profit before
corporate income taxes would be decreased by KZT 1,043,939 thousand (in the beginning of 2015: would be decreased by
KZT 260,002 thousand).

Operational risk

Operational risk is the tisk of loss arising from systems failure, human errot, fraud or external events. Whern controls fail to
petform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or can lead to financial loss.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but a control framework and monitoring and tesponding to
potential risks could be effective tools to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access rights,
authorization and reconciliation procedutes, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.

28. Fair value of financial instruments

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

U Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

. Level 2: techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are obsetrvable, either
directly or indirecty; and

] Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.
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28. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fait value hierarchy as at
31 December 2016:

Fair value measurement with the use of
Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable non-obser-
active markets inputs vable inputs

As at 31 December 2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Financial assets measuted at fair value
Dertivative financial assets - 829,066 - 829,066
Total financial assets measured at fair value — 829,066 - 829,066
Assets whose fair value is disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 22,989,891 - - 22,989,891
Amounts due from credit institutions - 662,881 - 662,881
Loans to customers - - 47,425,415 47,425,415
Finance lease receivables - - 198,263,817 198,263,817
Other financial assets - - 338,193 338,193
Total financial assets whose fair value is

disclosed 22,989,891 662,881 246,027,425 269,680,197
Financial liabilities whose fair value is

disclosed
Amounts due to the Shareholder - 81,528,905 - 81,528,905
Amounts due to credit institutions - 35,805,084 - 35,805,084
Debt securities issued 45,675,214 - - 45,675,214
Other financial liabilities - - 5,482,712 5,482,712
Total financial liabilities whose fair value is ‘

disclosed 45,675,214 117,333,989 5,482,712 168,491,915

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2015:

Fair value measurement with the use of

"Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable non-obser-
markets Inputs vable inputs
As at 31 Decemper 2015 (Level 1) (Level 2, (Level 3) Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
Detivative financial assets s 1,734,567 — 1,734,567
Total financial assets measured at fair value — 1,734,567 — 1,734,567
Assets whose fair value is disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 23,874,332 - — 23,874,332
Amounts due from credit institutions ~ 2,549,777 - 2,549,777
Loans to customers — 54,472,255 54,472,255
Finance lease receivables e == 170,528,033 170,528,033
Other financial assets = 130,141 130,141
Total financial assets whose fair value is
disclosed 23,874,332 2,549,777 225,130,429 251,554,538
Financial liabilities whose fair value is
disclosed
Amounts due to the Shareholder - 94,626,632 - 94,626,632
Amounts due to credit institutions - 28,136,223 - 28,136,223
Debt securities issued 36,570,500 - - 36,570,500
Other financial liabilities = =3 5,233,635 5,233,635
Total financial liabilities whose fair value is
disclosed 36,570,500 122,762,855 5,233,635 164,566,990
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28. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments recorded at fair value

The following is a description of the determination of fair value for financial instruments which are recorded at fair value
using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Company’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make

when valuing the instruments.
Derivatives

Derivative instruments valued using a valuation technique with market observable inputs. As for embedded derivative
instruments assumptions are made on the basis of market rates adjusted by specific chatacteristics of the instrument. The
Company uses Black-Scholes model to evaluate its financial instruments and valuation models (such as risk free rates and
volatllity coefficients), are determined on the basis of financial instruments with similar characteristics quoted at Bloomberg.

Financial instruments not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position

Set out below is a compatison of the catrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments.

As at 31 December 2016 As at 31 Decemper 2015
Unrecogni- Unrecogni-
Cartying Fair sed (loss)/ Carrying Fair sed (loss)/
amount value gain amount value gain
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 22,989,891 22,989,891 - 23,874,332 23,874,332 -
Amounts due from credit
institutions 662,881 662,881 - 2,549,777 2,549,777 -
Loans to customers 54,841,601 47,425,415 (7,416,186) 59,739,798 54,472,255 (5,267,543)
Finance lease receivables 197,402,364 198,263,817 861,453 179,633,484 170,528,033 (9,105,451)
Other financial assets 338,193 338,193 - 130,141 130,141 —

276,234,930 269,680,197 (6,554,733) 265,927,532 251,554,538 (14,372,994)

Financial liabilities

Amounts due to the Shareholder 85,638,633 81,528,905 4,109,728 104,286,082 94,626,632 9,659,450
Amounts due to credit institutions 39,556,372 35,805,084 3,751,288 30,424,302 28,136,223 2,288,079
Debt securities issued 46,841,139 45,675,214 1,165,925 38,624,394 36,570,500 2,053,894
Other financial liabilities 5,482,712 5,482,712 = 5,233,635 5,233,635 .
177,518,856 168,491,915 9,026,941 178,568,413 164,566,990 14,001,423

‘Total unrecognised change in

unrealised fair value 2,472,208 (31N
Methods of measurement and assumptions
The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instruments
which are not tecorded at fair value in the financial statements.
Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid ot having a shott term matutity (less than three months) it is assumed
that the cartying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also applied to amounts due from credit
institutions placed on market terms.

Fixed and variable rate financial instruments

The fair values of unquoted financial instruments are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates cutrently available
for financial instruments on similar terms, credit tisk and remaining maturities.

In case of assets with fait values disclosed in the financial statements, future cash flows are discounted at the average market
rate of financial instruments with similar maturities based on the statistical data published by the National Bank of the Republic
of Kazakhstan. The indicated approach is used in determining the fair value of loans issued to clients and finance lease
receivables.
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28. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Fixed and variable rate financial instruments (continued)

In case of liabilities with fair values disclosed in the financial statements, future cash flows are discounted at the average market
rate of financial instruments with similar maturities,

° the amounts due to the Shareholder are discounted at the average rate of bonds of the Ministty of Finance of the
Republic of Kazakhstan with similar maturity;

. the amounts due to credit institutions are discounted at the average market rate of financial organizations based on
data placed on Bloomberg,

The future cash flows comprise repayment of pﬁncipal and interest calculated at the interest rate stipulated by the agreement
to the amount of principal.
29. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and labilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. See
Note 27 Risk management for the Company’s contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

2016 2015
Within More than Within More than

one year one year Total One year oOne year Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 22,989,891 - 22,989,891 23,874,332 — 23,874,332
Amounts due from credit institutions 662,881 - 662,881 2,549,777 - 2,549,777
Detivative financial assets 829,066 - 829,066 1,608,230 126,337 1,734,567
Loans to customers 26,185,392 28,656,209 54,841,601 23,256,088 36,483,710 59,739,798
Finance lease receivables 54,485,653 142,916,711 197,402,364 47,394,307 132,239,177 179,633,484
Assets held for sale - - - 508,034 - 508,034
Property held for finance lease 5,292,406 - 5,292,406 7,594,407 - 7,594,407
Current corporate income tax prepaid 894,899 - 894,899 626,732 - 626,732
Property and equipment - 1,010,749 1,010,749 — 1,078,038 1,078,038
Intangible assets - 216,334 216,334 - 227,695 227,695
VAT and other taxes receivable 1,874,026 - 1,874,026 1,554,151 - 1,554,151
Advances paid 120,564 164,180 284,744 - 5,996,446 5,996,446
Other assets 484,261 - 484,261 180,819 - 180,819
Total 113,819,039 172,964,183 286,783,222 109,146,877 176,151,403 285,298,280
Liabilities
Amounts due to the Shareholder 24,839,930 60,798,703 85,638,633 21,789,323 82,496,759 104,286,082
Amounts due to credit institutions 13,526,255 26,030,117 39,556,372 6,923,504 23,500,798 30,424,302
Debt securities issued 877,050 45,964,089 46,841,139 720,384 37,904,010 38,624,394
Deferred corporate income tax liabilities - 2,133,275 2,133,275 — 2,460,648 2,460,648
Advances received 2,502,225 - 2,502,225 4,760,927 - 4,760,927
Defetred VAT payable 467,588 2,477,932 2,945,520 367,518 2,166,016 2,533 534
Other liabilities 7,614,038 184,195 7,798,233 6,594,639 184,195 6,778,834
Total 49,827,086 137,588,311 187,415,397 41,156,295 148,712,426 189,868,721
Net position 63,991,953 35,375,872 99,367,825 67,990,582 27,438,977 95,429,559

30. Related party transactions

In accordance with TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, patties are considered to be related if one patty has the ability to control
the other party or exercise significant influenice over the other party in making financial ot operational decisions. In considering
each possible related party telationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

Related patties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not. Transactions between related parties may not
be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between unrelated patties.

Transactions with government-related entities (excluding the shareholder)

The Republic of Kazakhstan, acting through the State Property Committee within the Ministry of Finance, controls the

Company and has a significant impact on its activities.
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30. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with government-related entities (excluding the shareholder) (continued)

The Republic of Kazakhstan through its state agencies and other institutions directly and indirectl
mfluence over a significant number of entities (together referred to as

executes bank transactions with these entities such as taising of loans and placement of cash.

Transactions with non government-related entities including the shareholder

“entities associated with the state’

y controls and has significant
)- The Company

The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and related expense and income for the year

are as follows:

2016 2015
Companies Companies
under Other under Other
common related conumon related
Larent control parties Parent control parties
Loans issued as at 1 January = = - - = -
Loans issued == ~ - — =
Loans repaid = - - — 5
Loans issued as at 31 December - ~ — — -
Finance lease receivables as at
1 January = 682,976 - - 466,063 -
Issued during the year 7 - - - 363,651 —
Repaid during the year - (258,222) - - (146,738) —
Finance lease receivables at
31 December = 424,754 - - 682,976 -
Interest income accrued on finance lease
as at 31 December - 7,278 3 - 45,072 -
Less allowance for impairment at
31 December = (22,163) & - (27,800 -
Finance lease receivables at
31 December after allowance for
impairment = 409,869 - — 700,248 =
Loans received at 1 January 103,432,078 ot - 97.164,180 - 5
Loans received 5,504,093 = - 24 375 431 = =
Loans repaid _(23,996,690) - - (18.107,533) 22 =
Loans received at 31 December 84,939,481 - = 103,432,078 = -
Interest expense accrued on loans as at
31 December (699,152) - = (854,004) — ~
Dividends payable as at 1 January - - - - - =
Dividends declared during the year - - = 2,855,932 -
Dividends paid during the year - = = (2,855,932) = =
Dividends payable as at
31 December = - = — ==
Debt securities issued 35,686,800 - - 35595477 = =
Interest income on finance lease
receivables = 49,541 - - 57,248 -
Allowance for impairment of finance
lease receivables ~ 5,637 - - 128,342 -
Interest expense (6,356,922) - - (6,298,616) - -
Other expense = (4,173) - - (5,697) -

Loans issued to other related patties and finance lease receivables wete at rates ranging from 4.0% to 13.4%

maturity term from 4 to 7 yeats.

per annum with

Compensation of key management personnel consisting of 5 (five) persons in 2016 and 2015 was comptised of the following:

Salaries and other short-term benefits
Social secutity taxes and costs
Total key management personnel compensation

2016 2015
57,863 58,631

5,740 5,897
63,603 64,528
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31. Capital adequacy

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adequacy of the

Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measutes, the ratios established by the NBRK and 1988 Basel agreement
in supervising the Company.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company had complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requitements.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management ate to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and that the Company maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and to maximise shareholders’ value.

Capital adequacy ratio established by the NBRK

The NBRK requites companies engaged in certain types of banking activities to maintain 2 minimum Tier 1 capital adequacy
ratio of 6.0% of assets and Tier 2 capital adequacy ratio of 6.0% of assets and minimum general total capital adequacy ratio
of 12.0% of risk-weighted assets. At 31 Decembet, the Company’s capital adequacy ratio on this basis was as follow:

2016 2015
Tier 1 capital 96,087,808 95,358,573
Tiet 2 capital 3,228,629 -
Total capital 99,316,437 95,358,573
Assets 286,783,222 285,298,280
Risk weighted assets and contingent and potential liabilities 267,564,893 271,111,965
Operational risk 4,008,320 5,969,930
Capital adequacy ratio (k1) — not less than 6.0% 33.51% 33.42%
Capital adequacy ratio (k1-2) — not less than 6.0% 35.91% 35.17%
Capital adequacy ratio (k1-3) — not less than 12.0% 36.57% 34.42%

Capital adequacy ratio under 1988 Basel agreement

As at 31 December, the Company’s capital adequacy ratio, computed in accordance with 1988 Basel agreement requirements
together with subsequent adjustments pertaining to inclusion of market risk, comprise:

2016 2015
Tier 1 capital 96,087,808 95,358,573
Tier 2 capital 3,228,629 ==
Total capital 99,316,437 95,358,573
Risk weighted assets 261,742,218 260,381,364
Tier 1 capital ratio 36.71% 36.62%
Total capital ratio 37.94% 36.62%
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